

**IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE**

)	
In re:)	Chapter 11
)	
MARELLI AUTOMOTIVE LIGHTING USA LLC, <i>et al.</i> , ¹)	Case No. 25-11034 (CTG)
)	
Debtors.)	(Jointly Administered)
)	
)	Re: Docket Nos. 16, 105

CERTIFICATION OF COUNSEL REGARDING FINAL ORDER ON MOTION OF DEBTORS FOR ENTRY OF INTERIM AND FINAL ORDERS (I) AUTHORIZING THE DEBTORS TO (A) REDACT CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION OF CUSTOMERS, (B) REDACT CERTAIN PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION OF INDIVIDUALS, AND (C) SERVE CERTAIN PARTIES IN INTEREST BY EMAIL, (II) APPROVING THE FORM AND MANNER OF SERVICE OF THE NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT, AND (III) GRANTING RELATED RELIEF

The undersigned proposed counsel for the above-captioned debtors and debtors in possession (collectively, the “Debtors”) hereby certifies that:

1. On June 11, 2025, the Debtors filed the *Motion of Debtors for Entry of Interim and Final Orders (I) Authorizing the Debtors to (A) Redact Certain Confidential Information of Customers, (B) Redact Certain Personally Identifiable Information of Individuals, and (C) Serve Certain Parties in Interest By Email, (II) Approving the Form and Manner of Service of the Notice of Commencement, and (III) Granting Related Relief* (the “Motion”) [Docket No. 16].

2. On June 12, 2025, the Court held an interim hearing on the Motion.

3. On June 12, 2025, the Court entered the *Interim Order (I) Authorizing the Debtors to (A) Redact Certain Confidential Information of Customers, (B) Redact Certain Personally Identifiable Information of Individuals, and (C) Serve Certain Parties in Interest by*

¹ A complete list of each of the Debtors in these chapter 11 cases may be obtained on the website of the Debtors’ claims and noticing agent at <https://www.veritaglobal.net/Marelli>. The location of Marelli Automotive Lighting USA LLC’s principal place of business and the Debtors’ service address in these chapter 11 cases is 26555 Northwestern Highway, Southfield, Michigan 48033.

Email, (II) Approving the Form and Manner of Service of the Notice of Commencement, and (III) Granting Related Relief (the “Interim Order”) [Docket No. 105].

4. On June 13, 2025, the Debtors filed the *Notice of Entry of Interim Order and Final Hearing Regarding Motion of Debtors for Entry of Interim and Final Orders (I) Authorizing the Debtors to (A) Redact Certain Confidential Information of Customers, (B) Redact Certain Personally Identifiable Information of Individuals, and (C) Serve Certain Parties in Interest By Email, (II) Approving the Form and Manner of Service of the Notice of Commencement, and (III) Granting Related Relief* [Docket No. 137].

5. Objections to entry of a final order granting the relief requested in the Motion were due no later than **July 9, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. (prevailing Eastern Time)**.

6. The Debtors received informal comments from the Office of the United States Trustee (the “U.S. Trustee”) and the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors (the “Committee”) with respect to the form of final order on the Motion. Attached hereto as **Exhibit A** is a form of final order (the “Proposed Final Order”), which incorporates comments from the U.S. Trustee and the Committee. The U.S. Trustee, the Committee, and the Ad Hoc Group of Senior Lenders do not object to entry of the Proposed Final Order.

7. A redline of the Proposed Final Order is attached hereto as **Exhibit B**, showing changes from the proposed final order that was attached to the Motion.

8. The Debtors respectfully request entry of the Proposed Final Order at the Court's convenience.

Dated: July 15, 2025
Wilmington, Delaware

/s/ Laura Davis Jones

PACHULSKI STANG ZIEHL & JONES LLP

Laura Davis Jones (DE Bar No. 2436)
Timothy P. Cairns (DE Bar No. 4228)
Edward A. Corma (DE Bar No. 6718)
919 North Market Street, 17th Floor
P.O. Box 8705
Wilmington, Delaware 19899 (Courier 19801)
Telephone: (302) 652-4100
Facsimile: (302) 652-4400
Email: ljones@pszjlaw.com
tcairns@pszjlaw.com
ecorma@pszjlaw.com

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

KIRKLAND & ELLIS INTERNATIONAL LLP

Joshua A. Sussberg, P.C. (admitted *pro hac vice*)
Nicholas M. Adzima (admitted *pro hac vice*)
Evan Swager (admitted *pro hac vice*)
601 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10022
Telephone: (212) 446-4800
Facsimile: (212) 446-4900
Email: joshua.sussberg@kirkland.com
nicholas.adzima@kirkland.com
evan.swager@kirkland.com

-and-

Ross M. Kwasteniet, P.C. (admitted *pro hac vice*)
Spencer A. Winters, P.C. (admitted *pro hac vice*)
333 West Wolf Point Plaza
Chicago, Illinois 60654
Telephone: (312) 862-2000
Facsimile: (312) 862-2200
Email: ross.kwasteniet@kirkland.com
spencer.winters@kirkland.com

*Proposed Co-Counsel for the Debtors
and Debtors in Possession*

*Proposed Co-Counsel for the Debtors
and Debtors in Possession*

Exhibit A

**IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE**

)	
In re:)	Chapter 11
)	
MARELLI AUTOMOTIVE LIGHTING USA LLC, <i>et al.</i> , ¹)	Case No. 25-11034 (CTG)
Debtors.)	(Jointly Administered)
)	
)	Re: Docket Nos. 16, 105

FINAL ORDER
(I) AUTHORIZING THE DEBTORS TO
(A) REDACT CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
OF CUSTOMERS, (B) REDACT CERTAIN PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE
INFORMATION OF INDIVIDUALS, AND (C) SERVE CERTAIN PARTIES IN
INTEREST BY EMAIL, (II) APPROVING THE FORM AND MANNER OF SERVICE
OF THE NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT, AND (III) GRANTING RELATED RELIEF

Upon the motion (the “Motion”)² of the above-captioned debtors and debtors in possession (collectively, the “Debtors”) for entry of a final order (this “Final Order”), (a) authorizing the Debtors to (i) redact certain confidential information of customers, (ii) redact certain personally identifiable information of individuals, and (iii) serve certain parties in interest by email; (b) approving the form and manner of service of the notice of commencement of these chapter 11 cases; and (c) granting related relief, all as more fully set forth in the Motion; and upon the First Day Declaration; and this Court having jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334 and the *Amended Standing Order of Reference* from the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, dated February 29, 2012; and this Court having found that this is a core

¹ A complete list of each of the Debtors in these chapter 11 cases may be obtained on the website of the Debtors’ claims and noticing agent at <https://www.veritaglobal.net/Marelli>. The location of Marelli Automotive Lighting USA LLC’s principal place of business and the Debtors’ service address in these chapter 11 cases is 26555 Northwestern Highway, Southfield, Michigan 48033.

² Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Motion.

proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2); and this Court having found that this Court may enter a final order consistent with Article III of the United States Constitution; and this Court having found that venue of this proceeding and the Motion in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409; and this Court having found that the relief requested in the Motion is in the best interests of the Debtors' estates, their creditors, and other parties in interest; and this Court having found that the Debtors' notice of the Motion and opportunity for a hearing on the Motion were appropriate and no other notice need be provided; and this Court having reviewed the Motion and having heard the statements in support of the relief requested therein at a hearing before this Court (the "Hearing"); and this Court having determined that the legal and factual bases set forth in the Motion and at the Hearing establish just cause for the relief granted herein; and upon all of the proceedings had before this Court; and after due deliberation and sufficient cause appearing therefor, it is HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The Motion is granted on a final basis as set forth herein.
2. The requirements of Local Rules 1007-2 and 2002-1(e)(v) that separate mailing matrices be submitted and maintained for each Debtor are permanently waived, and the Debtors are authorized to submit and maintain a consolidated Creditor Matrix.
3. The Debtors shall furnish to Verita, the Claims and Noticing Agent in these chapter 11 cases, a consolidated Creditor Matrix.
4. The Debtors are authorized, on a final basis, pursuant to section 107(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, to redact the names, addresses, and email addresses of their customers, except customers otherwise publicly disclosed in these chapter 11 cases as customers, from any filings with the Court or made publicly available in these chapter 11 cases.

5. The Debtors are authorized, on a final basis, pursuant to section 107(c)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, to redact on the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, affidavits of service, and any other documents filed with the Court by the Debtors the home addresses, email addresses, and other personally identifiable information or Personal Data, but not the names, of individuals, including individual creditors and individual equity holders, both in the United States and abroad. The Debtors shall provide an unredacted version of the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, and any other filings redacted pursuant to this Final Order to (a) the Court, the U.S. Trustee, counsel to the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors, and the Claims and Noticing Agent and (b) any party in interest upon a request to the Debtors (email being sufficient) or to the Court that is reasonably related to these chapter 11 cases, subject to the restrictions of the UK GDPR, the EU GDPR, and any other applicable foreign data protection law or regulation; *provided* that any receiving party shall not transfer or otherwise provide such unredacted document to any person or entity not party to the request. The Debtors shall inform the U.S. Trustee promptly after denying any request for an unredacted document pursuant to this Final Order.

6. Nothing herein precludes a party in interest's right to file a motion requesting that the Court unseal the information redacted by this Final Order.

7. The Debtors shall file a redacted version of the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, or any other document filed with the Court, as well as post it on the Claims and Noticing Agent's website.

8. For the avoidance of doubt, the Debtors shall file an unredacted Creditor Matrix under seal with the Court.

9. Nothing in this Final Order shall waive or otherwise limit the service of any document upon or the provision of any notice to any individual whose personally identifiable

information is sealed or redacted pursuant to this Final Order. Service of all documents and notices upon individuals whose personally identifiable information is sealed or redacted pursuant to this Final Order shall be confirmed in the corresponding certificate of service.

10. To the extent a party in interest files a document on the docket in these chapter 11 cases that is required to be served on creditors whose information is under seal pursuant to this Final Order, such party in interest should contact counsel for the Debtors who shall work in good faith, with the assistance of the Claims and Noticing Agent, to effectuate the service on such party's behalf.

11. The Debtors, through their Claims and Noticing Agent, are authorized to modify the service requirements of Bankruptcy Rule 2002(g) and serve all pleadings and papers, including the Notice of Commencement, via email, except when a party to be served both (a) has a mailing address in the Debtors' books, records, and files or has designated a mailing address under Bankruptcy Rules 2002(g)(1) or 5003(e), and (b) has requested hard copy U.S. first class mail service, in which case, such party shall be served by mail at such mailing address; *provided* that when serving the Debtors' current or former employees, interest holders, or other individual creditors by mail, the Claims and Noticing Agent shall use such individuals' home addresses. Nothing in this order prevents the Debtors from serving any party by email in addition to the methods of service set forth in Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9036. If notice is provided to any of the Debtors' customers by hard copy U.S. first class mail service, such notice need not exceed one page if it includes a website URL that links directly to the document(s) to which such notice relates. This Final Order does not authorize service by email of any complaint or other pleading filed in an adversary proceeding, unless the party to be served consents to email service of the applicable document(s).

12. Notice of the Motion as provided therein shall be deemed good and sufficient notice of such Motion, and the requirements of the Bankruptcy Rules and the Local Rules are satisfied by such notice.

13. The Debtors are authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the relief granted in this Final Order in accordance with the Motion.

14. This Court retains jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising from or related to the implementation, interpretation, and enforcement of this Final Order.

Exhibit B

that this is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2); and this Court having found that this Court may enter a final order consistent with Article III of the United States Constitution; and this Court having found that venue of this proceeding and the Motion in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409; and this Court having found that the relief requested in the Motion is in the best interests of the Debtors' estates, their creditors, and other parties in interest; and this Court having found that the Debtors' notice of the Motion and opportunity for a hearing on the Motion were appropriate and no other notice need be provided; and this Court having reviewed the Motion and having heard the statements in support of the relief requested therein at a hearing before this Court (the "Hearing"); and this Court having determined that the legal and factual bases set forth in the Motion and at the Hearing establish just cause for the relief granted herein; and upon all of the proceedings had before this Court; and after due deliberation and sufficient cause appearing therefor, it is HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The Motion is granted on a final basis as set forth herein.

2. ~~1.~~ The requirements of Local Rules 1007-2 and 2002-1(e)(v) that separate mailing matrices be submitted and maintained for each Debtor are permanently waived, and the Debtors are authorized to submit and maintain a consolidated Creditor Matrix.

3. ~~2.~~ The Debtors shall furnish to Verita, the Claims and Noticing Agent in these chapter 11 cases, a consolidated Creditor Matrix.

4. ~~3.~~ The Debtors are authorized, on a final basis, pursuant to section 107(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, to redact the names, addresses, and email addresses of their customers, except customers otherwise publicly disclosed in these chapter 11 cases as customers, from any filings with the Court or made publicly available in these chapter 11 cases.

5. ~~4.~~ The Debtors are authorized, on a final basis, pursuant to section 107(c)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, to redact on the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, affidavits of service, and any other documents filed with the Court by the Debtors ~~(a) the home and addresses,~~ email addresses, and other personally identifiable information or Personal Data, but not the names, of individuals, including individual creditors and individual equity holders, ~~who are United States citizens located~~ both in the United States and ~~(b) the names, home and email addresses, and other Personal Data of any individual person whose personally identifiable information has been provided to an organization with an establishment in the United Kingdom, a European Economic Area member state, or other foreign country with data protection laws and/or regulations where the Debtors do business~~ abroad. The Debtors shall provide an unredacted version of the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, and any other filings redacted pursuant to this Final Order to (a) the Court, the U.S. Trustee, counsel to ~~any~~ the ~~Official~~ eCommittee ~~appointed in these chapter 11 cases~~ of Unsecured Creditors, and the Claims and Noticing Agent and (b) any party in interest upon a request to the Debtors (email being sufficient) or to the Court that is reasonably related to these chapter 11 cases, subject to the restrictions of the UK GDPR, the EU GDPR, and any other applicable foreign data protection law or regulation; *provided* that any receiving party shall not transfer or otherwise provide such unredacted document to any person or entity not party to the request. The Debtors shall inform the U.S. Trustee promptly after denying any request for an unredacted document pursuant to this Final Order.

6. ~~5.~~ Nothing herein precludes a party in interest's right to file a motion requesting that the Court unseal the information redacted by this Final Order.

7. ~~6.~~ The Debtors shall file a redacted version of the Creditor Matrix, the Schedules and Statements, or any other document filed with the Court, as well as post it on the Claims and Noticing Agent's website.

8. ~~7.~~ For the avoidance of doubt, the Debtors shall file an unredacted Creditor Matrix under seal with the Court.

9. ~~8.~~ Nothing in this Final Order shall waive or otherwise limit the service of any document upon or the provision of any notice to any individual whose personally identifiable information is sealed or redacted pursuant to this Final Order. Service of all documents and notices upon individuals whose personally identifiable information is sealed or redacted pursuant to this Final Order shall be confirmed in the corresponding certificate of service.

10. ~~9.~~ To the extent a party in interest files a document on the docket in these chapter 11 cases that is required to be served on creditors whose information is under seal pursuant to this Final Order, such party in interest should contact counsel for the Debtors who shall work in good faith, with the assistance of the Claims and Noticing Agent, to effectuate the service on such party's behalf.

11. ~~10.~~ The Debtors, through their Claims and Noticing Agent, are authorized to modify the service requirements of Bankruptcy Rule 2002(g) and serve all pleadings and papers, including the Notice of Commencement, via email, except when a party to be served both (a) has a mailing address in the Debtors' books, records, and files or has designated a mailing address under Bankruptcy Rules 2002(g)(1) or 5003(e), and (b) has requested hard copy U.S. first class mail service, in which case, such party shall be served by mail at such mailing address; provided that when serving the Debtors' current or former employees, interest holders, or other individual creditors by mail, the Claims and Noticing Agent shall use such individuals'

home addresses. Nothing in this order prevents the Debtors from serving any party by email in addition to the methods of service set forth in Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9036. If notice is provided to any of the Debtors' customers by hard copy U.S. first class mail service, such notice need not exceed one page if it includes a website URL that links directly to the document(s) to which such notice relates. This Final Order does not authorize service by email of any complaint or other pleading filed in an adversary proceeding, unless the party to be served consents to email service of the applicable document(s).

12. ~~11.~~ Notice of the Motion as provided therein shall be deemed good and sufficient notice of such Motion, and the requirements of the Bankruptcy Rules and the Local Rules are satisfied by such notice.

13. ~~12.~~ The Debtors are authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the relief granted in this Final Order in accordance with the Motion.

14. ~~13.~~ This Court retains jurisdiction with respect to all matters arising from or related to the implementation, interpretation, and enforcement of this Final Order.